Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Integrated Commissioning Board
Tuesday, 26th January, 2021
3.00 pm.
Virtual and via YouTube

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local
Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations
2020 Under the provisions of these regulations the location where a meeting is held
can include reference to more than one place including electronic, digital or virtual
locations such as Internet locations, web addresses or conference call telephone
numbers. To attend this meeting it can be watched live as a webcast. The recording
of the webcast will also be available for viewing after the meeting has ended
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Minutes
To consider the minutes of the meeting fo the Integrated
Commissioning Board held on 1 December 2020.

3

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

4

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

4-5

5

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

6

Social Care Better Care Fund Budget Monitoring Report – Quarter
3 2020/21

6 - 13

To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Social Care
and Ageing Well/ Chief Finance Officer (Health & Social Care
Integration).
7

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Monitoring Report
November 2020

14 - 23

To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Social Care
& Ageing Well / Chief Finance Officer (Health & Social Care
Integration).
8

Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public
interest would not be served in publishing the information.

9

Proposed Adult Social Care Provider Fee Rates 2021/2022
Financial Year

24 - 39

To consider the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Social
Care and Ageing Well / Director of Commissioning
10

Commissioning Intentions - Specialist Health Improvement
Provision
To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Healthy
Lives / Director of Commissioning.

40 - 45

11

Approval to tender for Payroll/Accountancy/Brokerage services
for Cash Budget Recipients

46 - 49

To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Healthy
Lives / Director of Commissioning
12

Recommissioning of the Contract for the delivery of assessments
under the Deprivation of Liberty Scheme
To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Social Care
& Ageing Well / Assistant Director (Commissioning)

Integrated Commissioning Board Members
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Dr Bodrul Alam
Councillor Daalat Ali
Councillor Allen Brett
Graham Burgess
Denise Dawson
Dr Chris Duffy
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Joanne Newton
For more information about this meeting, please contact
Michael Garraway
01706 924829
michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk

50 - 55

Agenda Item 2
INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD
MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 1 December 2020
PRESENT: G. Burgess (Independent Chair); Rochdale Borough Council –
Councillors D Ali, Brett, Heakin; HMRCCG – Dr B Alam, D. Dawson, Dr C.
Duffy, J. Newton.
OFFICERS: S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive / Accountable Officer), S. McIvor
(Director of Commissioning), G. Hopper (Director of Children’s Services), N.
Thornton (Director of Resources), T. Harrison (Assistant Director –
Commissioning), N. Baig (Assistant Director – Commissioning), S. Evans
(Chief Finance Officer – Health & Social Care Integration) and M. Garraway
(Committees and Constitutional Services)
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed; K. Hurley (Director
of Operations and Executive Nurse),
61

MINUTES
Resolved
That the minutes of the Integrated Commissioning Board meeting held on the
27 October 2020 be approved as a correct record.

62

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest in the items on the agenda.

63

COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS 2020/21 UPDATE
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Quality of Life /
Director of Commissioning which outlined the next steps in continuing the
development of the Strategic Commissioning Function (SCF) and Local Care
Organisation (LCO) and the development of system wide health and care
plans.
It was reported that further to the report considered at the Integrated
Commissioning Board meeting held on 27 October 2020, there has been a
significant increase in whole health and care system pressure due to the
continued impact of the COVID 19 pandemic. This has included increased
pressures across the majority services in health and social care due to
 Staff needing to isolate due to potential exposure to COVID 19.
 Pressure on services due to increased demand associated with COVID
19.
Resolved
That the report be noted.

64

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
Resolved
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration
of the following thee items of business, in accordance with the provisions of

Page 4

Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. Reason for
the decision: Should the press and public remain during the debate on the
following items, there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be
exempt under Parts 1 and 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972,
65

COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS 2020/21 - PRESENTATION
Consideration was given to a presentation on behalf of the Director of
Commissioning, setting out the strategic context of development of the Local
Care Organisation contract and alignment of services.
It was reported that the confirmed intentions of the Local Care Organisation
would be to:
 Embed population health in everything we do
 Increase our focus on community engagement
 Increasing our focus on prevention including “Good Help”
 Continue to work at GM and Sector level
 ICB and LCO Board Development
 Development of the Local Care Organisation including understanding
the LCO final “form”
 Development of Primary Care Networks (PCNs)
 Tactical commissioning to be further progressed including health, social
care and public health
 Financial Probity and best value
Reference was made to proposals set out in the document ‘Integrated Care:
next steps to build strong and effective integrated care systems across
England’, published on 26 November 2020, which set out proposals for
legislative reform and the operational direction of travel.
Resolved
That the report be noted.

66

SAVINGS PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Corporate
Delivery / Cabinet Member for Healthy Lives / Director of Commissioning /
Chief Finance Officer setting out proposals regarding Savings Proposals for
the Pooled Fund in order to meet the pre Covid-19 budget gap for 2021/22 for
the Local Authority & CCG.
Resolved
That the savings proposals related to Pooled Fund Services to address the
budget gap be approved for public consultation starting 4 th January 2021.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6
Report to Integrated Commissioning Board
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author

Lead Officer

Public/Private Document

26 January 2021
Cabinet Member for
Health & Wellbeing
Gareth Davies ( for Adult
Care Directorate & Public
Health & Integrated
Directorate)
Sam Evans (Chief Finance
Officer – Health & Social
Care Integration)
Public

Health & Social Care Better Care Fund Budget Monitoring Report –
Quarter 3 2020/21
Executive Summary
1.

At its May 2020 meeting the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) agreed
the revised 2020/21 budgets for the Better Care Fund (BCF), this report
updates the ICB and the Strategic Place Board (SPB) with the Quarter 3 (April
to December 2020) budget monitoring for the BCF for the financial year
2020/21.
Recommendation

2.1

ICB notes the Quarter 3 monitoring information as at December 2020 period
end.

2.2

ICB notes that there are contingencies being held for budgets not yet allocated
in 2020/21 of £37k and a forecast underspend against the equipment store
budget of £175k giving a total forecast revenue underspend of £212k.

2.3

ICB notes the forecast underspend against capital budgets of £363k in relation
to the Autism Project adaptations (£150k) and the INT hubs (£213k), both of
which are now expected to be spent in 2021/22.

2.4

ICB notes that an additional £355k DFG capital grant was allocated by the
Government in December 2020, and that this increases the forecast in year
underspend on DFG to £976k, which is expected to be spent in 2021/22. The
forecast in year underspend relates primarily to delays in carrying out DFG
adaptations as a result of Covid restrictions.

Page 6

Reason for Recommendation
3.

The Strategic Place Board (SPB) have ultimate sign off of the BCF budget as
mandated in the BCF Policy Framework and Planning Guidance. The SPB
have delegated responsibility for the BCF to the ICB. The revised 2020/21
budget for the BCF was agreed by the ICB in May 2020, this report provides
monitoring against those budgets as at December period end.

Key Points for Consideration
4.1

The BCF revised budget was set at the ICB meeting in May 2020 in line with
the BCF Policy Framework and Planning Guidance for 2017-19.

4.2

The partners must have a Section 75 agreement to support the BCF budget
and this was approved by the ICB at its September 2017 meeting. This has
been updated and forms part of the overall pooled Health and Social Care
Section 75 agreement for 2020/21 being reported to July ICB.

4.3

Alternatives Considered
It is a requirement of the NHSE guidance to produce a budget for 2020/21
which the ICB approved at its May 2020 meeting. This report updates the
monitoring against the 2020/21 budget which is a requirement of the Section
75 agreement. Therefore there are no alternatives to consider.

Page 7

Costs and Budget Summary
5.1

Table 1 shows the updated 2020/21 revenue budget and the forecast financial
position.

Line
No

1

2

3

4
5

Table 1 Revenue Budget and Forecast at December period end
2020/21
Spend/
2020/21
2020/21
Scheme
Committed
Budget
Forecast
Quarter 3
Revenue Expenditure
Funding of Social
Care Services
Additional Funding in
Adult Social Care
notified in Spring
Budget 2017
Care Act
Implementation
Carers Services
Carers -universal
services
Carers night sitting
service - dementia
Carers sub total

6

7

8

9
10
11

Reablement Services
Reablement dementia support
workers
Reablement Intermediate Care
dementia flexible
workers
Reablement - mental
health outreach
workers
Reablement - memory
clinic dementia
workers
Reablement - carers
life after stroke
Reablement equipment loan store
Reablement sub total
Intermediate tier
service

Forecast
Variance

£'s

£'s

£'s

19,163,202

14,372,397

19,163,202

-

1,568,389

1,176,292

1,568,389

-

205,498

154,124

205,498

-

408,681

306,511

408,681

-

81,600

61,200

81,600

-

490,281

367,711

490,281

-

86,817

65,113

86,817

-

64,309

48,232

64,309

-

110,681

83,011

110,681

-

52,708

39,531

52,708

-

138,689

104,017

138,689

-

974,945
1,428,149

534,870
874,774

799,677
1,252,881

(175,268)
(175,268)

Page 8

£'s

Reablement (STAR's)
12 plus to support the new
service
Pennine Acute ITS
13
contract
Pennine Acute CQUIN
14 - new funding from
CCG
Winter Pressure
15
Funding Expenditure
Contingency for
16
revenue schemes
Intermediate Care
sub total
Total Revenue
Expenditure

187,117

140,338

187,117

-

5,933,642

4,450,232

5,933,642

-

74,170

55,628

74,170

-

1,108,358

831,269

1,108,358

-

68,242

31,000

31,000

7,371,529

5,508,467

7,334,287

30,227,048

22,453,765

30,014,538

(37,242)
(37,242)
(212,510)

Income
17 Contribution from CCG
18 Contribution from LA
Contribution from LA
additional Grant
19
notified in 2017 Spring
Budget
Contribution from LA 20 Winter Pressure
Funding
Total Income
(Surplus) income
over expenditure

(17,933,566) (13,450,175) (17,933,566)
(7,212,551)

(9,616,735)

(1,568,389)

(1,176,292)

(1,568,389)

(1,108,358)

(831,269)

(1,108,358)

(9,616,735 )

-

-

-

(30,227,048) (15,113,525) (30,227,048)

0

(216,522)

(212,510)

(212,510)

5.2

There is a forecast underspend of £175k against the reablement equipment
budget This is due to £85k of equipment purchased being rechargeable
against the Covid Hospital Discharge programme and a general reduction in
spend due to Covid restrictions reducing the overall number of social worker
visits and servicing of existing equipment.

5.3

BCF Contingency of £31k has been used to fund the Urgent Treatment Centre
highways signage leaving an unallocated contingency balance of £37k.

5.4

Overall this provides a forecast in year saving of £213k. This position will
continue to be monitored and a decision made on how this funding will be
used at a future ICB.

Page 9

5.5

A BCF policy statement was issued in December confirming that the minimum
allocation towards the protection of Adult Social Care for 2020/21 should be in
line with the increase in the CCG contribution to the BCF of 5.3%. This is in
line with how the Rochdale BCF budget for 2020/21 has been set and
therefore no adjustments are required to the reported budget breakdown. It
was also confirmed that the CCG contribution to the BCF for 2021/22 will
increase by 5.3%.

5.6

The capital DFG budget is included in tables’ 2a/2b below. The figures include
the 2020/21 capital allocation and the balance carried over from 2019/20,
together with an additional allocation of £354k from the Government received
in December 2020.

5.7

Capital Budget Carry Forwards of £635k were agreed to be brought forward to
2020/21. £72k of this carry forward relates to DFG budgets, £150k is set aside
for Adaptations to the planned Autism Project, and the remaining £413k has
been earmarked to fund the capital costs in relation to Adult Social Care and
Health integration hubs across the 6 localities.
Table 2a 2020/21 Capital Budgets and Forecasts at December period end

Line
No

1a

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)2020/21 (see allocation below)

2

Total DFG in allocation below
Capital Grant carried over from
2019/20

2a
2b
3

5.8

Capital Schemes

2020/21
Budget

2020/21
Spend/
Committed
Quarter 3

2020/21
Forecast

Variance

£'s

£'s

£'s

£'s

3,060,036

1,212,200

2,084,000

(976,036)

3,060,036

1,212,200

2,084,000

(976,036)

DFG- Adaptations to Autism Project

150,000

0

0

(150,000)

Adult Social Care and Health
Integration Hubs

412,965

137,443

200,000

(212,965)

Total Capital Schemes

3,623,001

1,349,643

2,284,000

(1,339,001)

Contribution from LA

(3,623,001)

(1,349,643)

(2,284,000)

1,339,001

Total Capital Contributions
(Surplus) Contribution over
expenditure

(3,623,001)

(1,349,643)

(2,284,000)

1,339,001

0

0

0

0

As at the end of December there is a forecast underspend of £1,339k against
the capital budget. The £150k budget identified for adaptations to the Autism
Project is not expected to be required until 2021/22, and £213k of spend on
INT hubs is also forecast to be delayed until 2021/22. There is now an
expected underspend of £976k against the DFG, but demand for the service
means that this will be required in 2021/22. Any unspent budget as at the 31 st
of March will be carried forward to 2021/22.

Page 10

5.9

The DFG programme was put on hold due to Covid and social distancing
requirements, however spend was incurred for projects already underway that
were completed in early 20/21. The DFG programme resumed in July,
however due to the slow start, additional funding received and continuing
restrictions as a result of Covid, it is currently forecast that there will be an
underspend in year of £976k.This funding will be carried forward to 2021/22 to
help address the backlog that has built up once Covid restrictions have been
eased. See table 2b below for details on spend against each scheme.
Table 2b Allocation of DFG Budget and Forecast included in table 2a

Line
No

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

12
13

Allocation of DFG

2020/21
Budget

£'s
Main DFG Budget
2,176,865
DFG Top Up Grants
10,000
Minor Adaptations
160,000
Assistive Technology
75,000
Dementia, Falls and
Excess Cold Payments
10,000
Repairs to Adaptations
20,000
Housing Options for Older
People (HOOP) service
40,000
Care Homes Offer
96,000
Contribution to RBH new
build properties for
service users who we are
unable to adapt for
45,000
Contingency
427,171
Total
3,060,036

Page 11

2020/21
Spend/
2020/21
Committed Forecast
Quarter 3
£'s
£'s
951,751 1,700,000
11,559
13,000
97,119
160,000
43,120
60,000

Variance
£'s
(476,685)
3,000
0
(15,000)

1,211
1,501

5,000
6,000

(5,000)
(14,000)

24,000
60,675

40,000
75,000

0
(21,000)

21,264
25,000
0
0
1,212,200 2,084,000

(20,000)
(427,171)
(976,036)

5.10 Table 3 below shows a progress report on each of the schemes in the DFG
programme.
Table 3 Details of DFG Schemes 2020/21
Scheme
Main DFG Budget

DFG Top Up Grants

Update December 2020
Activity has increased following an initial
suspension between April and August, however
Covid regulations and social distancing
requirements has meant that work has taken longer
to complete than previously. There remains
significant demand in the system, which can be
met in 2021/22 by rolling forward the unspent
balance at year end.

Minor Adaptations

The number of minor adaptations has been lower
than usual due to Covid. If minor adaptations
remain at pre-Covid levels from now until
31/3/2021, we will achieve spend of £160,000.

Assistive Technology

Forecast spend is £15,000 lower than the budget
allocation as demand has reduced.

Dementia, Falls and
Excess Cold Payments

Activity levels have been reduced due to Covid,
resulting in forecast underspend of £5,000.

Repairs to Adaptations

Due to Covid, no repair works were carried out
between April and September. The backlog is now
being addressed, but an estimated £14,000 will be
left to carry forward at year end.

Housing Options for Older
People (HOOP) service

This spend will be incurred later in the year but we
are committed to paying £40,000 to fund the post
at RBH.

Care Homes Offer

A number of care homes haven’t been able to
proceed with their installations due to Covid but the
commitment has already been made with the
provider for systems to be installed post lockdown.
Some homes may not be able to complete their
installations before 31/3/21, leaving an estimated
£21,000 to carry forward at year end.

Contribution to RBH new
build properties for service
users who we are unable
to adapt for

Costs have been lower than originally anticipated.

Page 12

The original contingency of £72,647 has not been
required, due to delays resulting from the Covid
situation. In addition an unexpected further
£354,524 was allocated by the Government in
December.

Contingency

Risk and Policy Implications
6.1

Any risk of operating the BCF in 2020/21 is covered in the Section 75
agreement which was agreed by the ICB in September 2017. This has been
updated and forms part of the overall pooled Health and Social Care Section
75 agreement for 2020/21 reported to July ICB.

6.2

Most of the budgets in the BCF are fixed price contracts but there are
demand led budgets which could pose a financial risk mainly around the
provision of equipment. Regular monitoring will allow commissioners to
mitigate any risks and contingencies are included in both the capital and
revenue budgets which could be used to mitigate risks.
Consultation

7.1

There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other
than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report.
Background Papers

8.

Place of Inspection

LA Monitoring working papers
CCG Monitoring working papers

For Further Information Contact:

Number 1 Riverside
Number 1 Riverside

Gareth Davies ( for Adult Care
Directorate & Public Health & Integrated
Directorate), Tel: 01706924888,
gareth.davies@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 13

Agenda Item 7
Report to Integrated Commissioning Board
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author

Lead Officer

Public/Private Document

26th January 2021
Cabinet Member for Social
Care & Aging Well
Gareth Davies ( for Adult
Care Directorate & Public
Health & Integrated
Directorate)
Sam Evans (Chief Finance
Officer – Health & Social
Care Integration)
Public

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Monitoring Report
November 2020
Executive Summary
1.1

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the financial position
of the pooled budget for the financial year 2020/21 as at the end of November
2020. The pooled budget excludes the Better Care Fund (BCF) which is being
reported separately to the ICB in 2020/21. The pooled budget has been
amended to take into account the savings previously reported to ICB.

1.2

The Covid pandemic has caused a change in funding arrangements for the
CCG, and there is uncertainty around the impact Covid will have on both
partners this year. As a result of this uncertainty it was agreed at ICB and
Cabinet on the 26th of May that the Health & Social Care Pool budget risk
share agreement is changed for 2020/21 so that both partners are responsible
for their own pooled fund gap and in year underspend or overspend.

1.3

As previously reported to ICB The CCG opening pool gap on the Health &
Social Care pooled budget for 2020/21 was £4.1m. The LA had set a balanced
position for the LA Pooled Budgets.

1.4

As at the end of November the LA is reporting a nil variance against pool
budgets. This is in line with the position reported against LA Pooled budgets at
the end of September.

Page 14

1.5

The CCG has received an allocation for the period October to March 2021. As
at the end of November there is a forecast over performance of £1.1m against
pooled CCG budgets. The over performance is in relation to the Independent
sector and Hospital Discharge Programme. It is anticipated that the over
performance will be funded from national funding, but this will not be reflected
in the Pool until the allocation is received. Once this allocation is received the
Pool will show a breakeven position.

1.6

As at the end of November there has been £6.3m of Covid related costs
claimed against the NHS Covid fund, £4.7m of which relate to H&SC pooled
budgets. There are also £4.8m of Covid pressures net of specific grants being
reported against pool budgets that forms part of the Local Authority £25.4m
pressure. The Local Authority has received £22.2m of Government emergency
funding to date and is forecasting to receive £2.6m of support for lost sales,
fees and charges leaving a forecast £0.6m net pressure in year. The net LA
pool Covid pressure currently forecast at £4.8m will be wholly funded from
Government emergency funding leaving no in year pool pressure.

Recommendation
2.1

ICB notes the break-even position being forecast in relation to non-Covid pool
budgets as at the end of November.

2.2

ICB note that as at the end of November, £9.5m of Covid costs are forecast
against the Health & Social Care Pool Budget. £4.7m of these costs have
been reclaimed from the NHS Covid fund, and £4.8m forms part of the Local
Authority overall Covid-19 pressure of £25.4m. The Local Authority has
received £22.2m of Government emergency funding to date and is forecasting
to receive £2.6m of support for lost sales, fees and charges leaving a forecast
£0.5m net pressure in year. The net LA pool Covid pressure currently forecast
at £4.8m will be wholly funded from Government emergency funding leaving
no in year pool pressure.

2.3

ICB note that the non-Covid break-even position being reported against Adult
Social Care is largely due to one off contributions of £1.4m from the CCG
towards expensive placements and enhanced Discharge to assess provision,
however the 2021/22 budget settlement has allowed the LA to address this
issue without the need for further savings. The service and the finance team
have recently undertaken a financial sustainability review along with a review
of new operating models to understand the increasing pressures within adult
social care and the ongoing impacts of COVID.

Page 15

Reason for Recommendation
3.1

This report updates the ICB on the Health and Social Care pooled budgets for
2020/21 in line with National Health Service England (NHSE) guidelines and
the Greater Manchester (GM) Health and Social Care Partnership
requirements. As part of operating a pooled budget regular monitoring reports
are required.

3.2

The BCF has been excluded from the pooled reporting and will be reported
separately to ICB in line with NHSE requirements for reporting each quarter.

Key Points for Consideration
4.1

The pooling of budgets between the two organisations, LA and CCG, is in line
with NHSE guidelines to progress integration of Adult Social Care and Health
and is in accordance with the decision made by Cabinet and the CCG
Governing Body.

4.2

The operation of a formal pooled budget has been in place from April 2018.

4.3

Alternatives Considered
The operation of a formal pool in 2020/21 builds on the shadow pool that was
operated by the ICB in 2017/18 and is in line with 2018/19 & 2019/20
reporting; therefore there are no alternatives to consider.

Page 16

Costs and Budget Summary
5.1

Table 1 below shows the opening Health & Social Care Pool Budget for
2020/21. It should be noted that this is before the national approach for NHS
budgets was enforced for this financial year.
Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2020/21
2020/21 Expenditure Budgets

Opening 2020/21
Budget £m's

Adult's Services
Management, Support and Commissioning

4.5

Adults, Older People and Physical Disability

42.6

Learning Disability / Mental Health

58.6

Acute Health Care

116.2

Primary Care - Prescribing

32.3

Other Services

3.7

Adult Public Health

7.7

Total Adult Pooled Services

265.6

Children's Services
Management, Support and Commissioning

2.9

Children's Early Intervention

6.6

Health Community Services

7.2

Learning Disability / Mental Health

7.2

Special Educational Needs

4.1

Acute Health Care

23.0

Children 0-19 Public Health

5.0

Cared for Children and Safeguarding

30.7

Primary Care - Prescribing

8.6

Other Services

0.8

Total Children's Pooled Services

96.1

Total Health and Social Care Pooled Budgets

361.7

Contribution from Partners
CCG

-255.3

LA

-102.3

Total Contributions

-357.6

Opening Gap

5.2

4.1

NHSE Current Arrangements
The CCG received allocations in months 1-6 which enabled a breakeven position
to be reported. For months 7-12 the CCG has received an allocation based on
forecast expenditure that was submitted in September. The CCG is forecasting an
overall breakeven position once additional national funding has been received for
the costs incurred within the Independent sector and the hospital discharge
programme.

Page 17

5.3

Table 2 shows the latest monitoring position against the Health & Social Care
Pooled Budget as at the end of November.
Table 2
Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2020/21
November
Monitoring
position

2020/21
Budget

2020/21
Forecast

Variance

£m's

£m's

£m's

Narrative

Expenditure Budgets
Adult's Services

Management,
Support and
Commissioning

Adults, Older
People and
Physical Disability

Learning Disability
/ Mental Health

Acute Health Care

Primary Care Prescribing
Other Services
Adult Public
Health
Total Adult
Pooled Services

-1.5

39.8

-1.7

44.3

-0.2

There is a £0.2m underspend forecast against
staffing budgets in this area due to a delay in
filling vacancies. The negative budget reflects
the income held within management budgets
being greater than expenditure.

4.5

- It was anticipated that £1.7m of LA costs in this
category would be funded in 2020/21 via a loan
from the Health and Social Care Partnership but
it has since been confirmed that this is no longer
available. A one-off contribution of £1m from the
CCG towards expensive placements has helped
reduce this pressure to £0.7m.
- Due to the current funding arrangements and
reduction in residential placements, Adult Social
Care is forecasting a £0.6m underspend against
other budgets in this area.
- There are £4.4m LA Covid pressures forecast
against this area which has reduced as a result
of the introduction of the 2nd Infection Control
Grant and the continuation of HDP funding.
-£0.3m of LA costs for LD/MH were anticipated
to be funded via the loan mentioned above.
-This has been offset by a non-recurrent
contribution of £0.2m from the CCG to the pool
in 2020/21 and a £0.1m underperformance on
spend.

64.2

64.2

0.0

111.4

112.3

0.9

31.1

31.2

0.1

9.8

9.8

0.0

8.0

8.4

0.4

262.8

268.5

5.7

Page 18

- There is a £0.9m pressure against Adults Acute
Health Care due to non-NHS providers over
performance and new services which have not
been fully funded.
There is a forecast £0.1m over performance on
prescribing.

- There are £0.4m LA Covid pressures forecast
against Public Health budgets.

Children's
Services
Management,
Support and
Commissioning
Children's Early
Intervention
Health Community
Services
Learning Disability
/ Mental Health
Special
Educational Needs
Acute Health Care
Children 0-19
Public Health
Cared for Children
and Safeguarding
Primary Care Prescribing
Other Services
Total Children's
Pooled Services
Total Health and
Social Care
Pooled Budgets

2.9

2.9

0.0

7.4

7.4

0.0

12.7

12.7

0.0

7.9

7.9

0.0

4.2

4.2

0.0

22.0

22.2

0.2

5.3

5.3

0.0

31.0

33.9

2.9

8.3

8.3

0.0

1.1

1.1

0.0

102.8

105.9

3.1

365.6

374.4

8.8

- There is a £0.2m pressure against Children’s
Acute Health Care due to non-NHS providers
over performance and new services which have
not been fully funded.

- There are £2.9m LA Covid pressures forecast
against Children's Services.

The forecast variance of £8.8m represents:-£7.7m of LA Covid pressures before adjusting
for health Covid funding.
-a £1.1m over performance on health budgets
primarily due to over performance on Acute
health Care within the independent sector.

Contribution
from Partners

CCG

-261.7

-266.0

-4.3

LA

-103.9

-108.4

-4.5

Total
Contributions

-365.6

-374.4

-8.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

Forecast Position

Page 19

-The CCG has received £4.7m of Covid health
funding to offset pooled Covid costs, £1.8m of
which is already reflected in the figures above.
The remaining £2.9m relates to the ASC Covid
pressures identified above.
-The CCG is forecasting a £1.1m over
performance against pooled budgets which will
be reclaimed from NHS England under the
current funding arrangements.
-The CCG is contributing an additional £0.3m in
year to cover 50% of the late overspend on ASC
in 2019/20, with the LA contribution reducing by
the same amount.
- The LA will make a contribution from
Government emergency funding received to
address any unfunded Pool LA Covid pressures,
currently forecast to be £4.8m.

5.4

As at the end of November the LA is reporting a nil variance against nonCovid pool budgets, in line with the position reported in September. There is
an underlying £2m pressure in year within Adult Social Care representing the
continuation of services that were previously funded by Transformation
Funding and were planned to be funded from a GM H&SCP loan in 2020/21
which is no longer available. The pressure has been partially offset in year by
a non-recurrent £1.4m contribution from the CCG towards expensive
placements and an improved discharge to assess offer, along with a forecast
reduction in Adult Social Care spend on residential placements due to the
implications of Covid. The £2m pressure has been addressed in 2021/22
without the need for further savings following the autumn funding
announcements. The service and the finance team have recently undertaken
a financial sustainability review along with a review of new operating models
to understand the increasing pressures within adult social care and the
ongoing impacts of COVID.

5.5

As at the end of November the CCG pool position is a £1.1m over
performance. The £1.1m over performance after fully funding the COVID
costs is due to over performance by non-NHS providers (including Care UK,
Ophthalmology AQP, Mediscan diagnostics, and Care UK CATS) and the
Hospital Discharge programme. Due to the current funding regime these costs
will be funded by NHSE as a separate allocation. The overall CCG position
will be breakeven once the allocation is received.
Covid 19
CCG Impact

5.6

The CCG were able to reclaim costs incurred as a result of Covid-19 up until
the end of September. From October until March, costs can only be claimed
for costs eligible under the Hospital Discharge Program (HDP) Scheme 2.

5.7

For the financial year 2020/21 to the end of November, the CCG has
submitted the return to show the below Covid-19 Expenditure as part of the
monthly return:
Table 3
COVID

TOTAL £000

Primary Care

854

Prescribing

480

Hospital Discharge Programme (Scheme 1)

2,666

Hospital Discharge Programme (Scheme 2)

268

Hot Hubs

1,141

Continuing Healthcare (CHC)

352

Other

519

TOTAL

6,280

Page 20

5.8

This table is included for completeness however £1.580m of these costs sit
outside of the pooled fund. £4.700m of the total CCGs COVID claim falls
within the pooled fund.
LA Impact

5.9

The LA has received £22.2m and is forecasting to receive a further £2.6m of
funding to offset additional expenditure and reduced income caused by the
impact of Covid-19. Currently the pressure is £25.4m which exceeds the
funding that has been received.
Below is a summary of forecast additional expenditure less specific grant
funding, totalling £0.6m:
Table 4
LA Covid 19 Forecast Pressures 2020/21
Cost Pressures net of specific grants
Pooled LA Cost Pressures
less Pooled LA expenditure reclaimed from joint
hospital discharge programme as at the end of
November
Non Pooled LA Cost Pressures
LA Total Loss of Income
Forecast Total Pressure
LA General Covid 19 Funding Received
Forecast Government compensation re: Sales,
Fees & Charges Income, and use of Reserves
Forecast Total Funding
Net Covid 19 Pressure

5.10

£'m
7.736
-2.934
6.254
14.293
25.349
-22.231
-2.559
-24.790
0.559

Currently the impact is projected at £25.4m after taking onto account the
£2.9m of pooled LA costs incurred to date that have been charged against the
Covid hospital discharge programme. The LA has received £22.2m of general
Covid funding to offset these pressures, with a further £2.6m forecast to be
received in compensation for lost sales, fees and charges.
Work is on-going to assess the financial impact and timeframe involved
relating to Covid-19. The longer term implications are being considered to
support the Council in its financial planning going forward.
Two reserves are to be set up to hold funds to be used to offset the post
2020/21 impact of Covid 19, recognising that some of the forecast financial
impact of the pandemic in table 4 will not materialise until 2021/22 and future
years. The 2 reserves being established for demand led and economic
pressures and the Government Emergency funding will be applied as and
when the pressure materialises in future years.

Page 21

The amount to be transferred to the reserves will be finalised as part of the
year end process, and is dependent on ongoing developments relating to the
Covid 19 pandemic.
The Council will, with other Greater Manchester councils, continue to lobby
the government to provide further funding to offset the ongoing financial
impact of Covid-19.
5.11

Forecast Covid 19 related expenditure pressures against LA pooled budgets
net of specific grants total £7.7m, of which £2.9m has been charged against
the Covid hospital discharge programme for costs claimed up until the end of
November. This leaves a net forecast pressure of £4.8m which will be funded
from Government emergency funding received by the LA.

5.12

The LA was allocated a further instalment of the Infection Control Grant in
October of almost £2m bringing the total allocation in year to £4.1m. The
second instalment of the Infection Control grant requires 80% to be paid direct
to locally based care homes and community care providers on a per bed /
service user basis. The remaining 20% has been offered to care homes to
support additional testing and visiting requirements.

5.13

There are a number of aligned services which sit outside of the pooled budget
which are listed in table 5. These are not under the control of the ICB but are
included here for information, decision making around these budgets remains
with the LA or CCG.
Table 5
Aligned Services
Service
Health Protection
Physical Activity
Other Public Health
Link4Life
Management and Strategy
Shared Services with Bury
Sufficiency and Access
School Improvement, Organisation and Personnel
Educational Psychology/coordinator
Regional Adoption Agency
Primary Care
Acute Services
Core Running Costs
Primary Care & Co Commissioning
Other CCG
Total Aligned Services

Page 22

Host
PH
PH
PH
PH
CSC
CSC
CSC
CSC
CSC
CSC
CCG
CCG
CCG
CCG
CCG

Budget
£000's
160
544
1,192
2,368
243
574
45
855
456
1,279
6,937
49,254
4,128
39,010
1,340
108,385

Risk and Policy Implications
6.1

The pooled budget has been agreed to be operated in 2020/21. Section 75 of
the National Health Service 2006 Act gives powers to local authorities and
health bodies to establish and maintain pooled funds out of which payment
may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of prescribed LA
functions and prescribed NHS functions.

6.2

Under the Section 75 Risk Share agreement, If a revenue overspend or
underspend remains at the end of a financial year, the Partners agree that
such underspends and overspends will be managed by the respective
organisation in 2020/21. This is as a consequence of the different financial
regimes and funding for COVID and will be revisited for 2021/22.

6.3

The long term impact of Covid on the delivery of services is not fully
understood and it is expected that the financial impact will continue into
future years.
Consultation

7.1

There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other
than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report.
Background Papers

8.

Place of Inspection

LA Monitoring working papers

Number 1 Riverside

CCG Monitoring working papers

Number 1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact:

Gareth Davies ( for Adult Care
Directorate & Public Health & Integrated
Directorate), Tel: 01706924888,
gareth.davies@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 23

Agenda Item
9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 24

Agenda Item
10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 40

Agenda Item
11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 46

Agenda Item
12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 50

